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HIGHLIGHTS

Mission Statement

“We aim to supply
drinking water of the
highest quality, providing
nigh levels of customer
service and excellent
value for money”

Dunng the past year, Portsmouth Water has again maintained its
reputation for supplying high quality dninking waler, providing excellent
levels of customer service and carrying out its functions in a low cost,
efficient manner

- 2nd highest performing Company 1n the Ofwat qualitative
assessment

— Achieved the leakage target

— RoSPA Gold Medal for heatth and safety

Operating profits up despite a fall in water demand from commercial
customers, due to increase in non-water income and close control of
operating costs

Our commitment to providing the highest levels of customer service 1s
ilustrated by
— The Ofwat Qualitative Service Incentive Mechamsm customer
survey result, which ranks us joint second highest performing
Company n the industry in terms of service receved by
customers
— Only 8 written complaints per 10,000 connected properties,
compared with an industry average of 61
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Non-Executive
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FR Eng 123

Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Jomned in June 2002 and appomted Charrman
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Previously non-executive director of MTL
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1 Member of the Audit Committee
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3 Member of the Normration Cormmittes
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Robert Leonard Sullivan
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Jomed in June 2002 Previously held semior
executive positions with Scapa Group plc,
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Jomned 1n 1999 Previously with South East
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Raymond John Tennant
BAFGCACPFA 2

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Jomed in June 2002 Former Managing
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

| am pleased to report that Portsmouth Water has continued its
excellent performance in delivenng customer service Over the last
year Ofwat have been undertaking a quartery telephone questionnaire
on a sample of customers who have contacted their water company
in order t0 estabhish the qualty of the response to that contact This

15 part of a new approach to measunng customer service and 1S
known as the Service Incentive Mechamsm The resufts of the survey
for 2011 show that Portsmouth Water was ranked joint second In
performance out of 22 companies In addition, the Consumer Councll
for Water has reported that for 2011/12, the Company received only 8
wnitten complamnts per 10,000 connections, compared to an industry
average of 61

The health and safety of employees has the hughest prionty for the
bustness and the effort and commitment of everyone at the Company
was rewarded by the award of a Gold Medal from RoSPA This award
15 in recognihicn of achieving six Gold Awards and an mdustry sector
award in the last seven years

The Drought declared 1n the South East of England has dominated
press coverage of the industry in the last few months Portsmouth
Water has not had to impose temporary use bans this year, largely
because there was significant rainfall in the area in December which
did provide some recharge to groundwater levels The recard Apnil
ramiall has also unusually, further improved groundwater levels
which are now close to normal and therefore temporary use bans
are unlikely for the rest of this year We have, however asked our
customers to be careful with their use of water and we do have
plans to cope with a dry autumn and winter for 2012/13 The current
drought has, in the Board's view, lightighted the need for storage of
winter water with bulk transfers across the South East region as well
as water efficiency and demand management The Company had
proposed the construction of a winter storage reservorr by 2022 in
its Draft Water Resources Management Plan in 2008, but this was
subsequently delayed until 2033 as a result of discussions with the
Environment Agency The Board would argue that these plans should
be revisited and that the proposal could help with the water resource
position across the South East

In December 2011 the Government published 1ts White Paper, “Water
for Life” which set out its long term objectives for the industry and
proposed some far reaching changes to meet the challenges of

the future such as population growth and climate change These
objectives will be reflected in a draft Water Bil) which will be brought
forward this year The Company 15 fully engaged in this process and
will consider the implications of the changes for its future strategy

Also in December 2011, Ofwat 1ssued a consuftation document
mviting comments on their proposal to modify certain condrtions

of the Licence of Appointment of all appointed water and sewerage
companies Ofwat are seeking to increase substantially the scope of
discretion in relation to the pnce control elements of the licence The
Company does not support the modifications and has argued that to
accept Ofwat proposals would be to relinquish a key element of the
Water Industry Act that gives protectron to Companies and Investors
and that this would not be in the public interest Should Ofwat and the
Company fall to agree on the proposed changes, Ofwat can ask the
Competition Commisston to review and decide whether they should
be implemented The Company along with the rest of the Industry has
continued discussions with Ofwat to find a way forward, but Ofwat are

keen to resolve the issue by the spring of 2013 before 1t releases the
methodology for the next pnce review

In the financial results for the year, turnover rose by £1 15m (3 2%) to
£36 7m and operating proft before exceptional items rose by £0 4m
(6 4%) The increase in turnover included a £0 8m increase in non-
water tanff income, mainly related to diversion of water mains For
water tanff income an increase In charges of 2 6% was partially offset
by a fall in consumption by commercial customers of 5% Operating
costs excluding depreciation increased by £0 4m (2 1%), this despite
RPI at an average of about 5% and the intreduction of the Carhon
Reduction Commitment Levy of £0 2m which 1s effectively a tax on
our energy usage Operating costs show an outperformance against
the level assumed n the Final Determination by Ofwat

Capital Expenditure in the year to March 2012 was £8 1m, (2011 -
£9 6m} and included £3 9m, (2011 - £5 0Om) on mains renewals This
was lower than usual as a major scheme to reduce the nsk of water
quality and secunty 1ssues at the River Itchen Treatment Works was
delayed whilst planming permission for the work was obtaned The
reduction In the expenditure on mans renewals Is the result of the
Company increasing the use of ‘no dig’ techniques which are less
expensive than the conventional methods of renewals The length of
mains renewed met the target included in the Final Determination

The scheme at the River ltchen at approximately £5m will largely be
completed in 2012/13, and therefare overall Gapital Expenditure in this
year will be much higher

In the last year there have been significant changes to the Board with
the retirements of the Managing Director, Nick Roadmight in December
2011 and of the Engineening Director, Andy Neve in Apnil 2012 |

was pleased that Newville Smith, our Finance Director for 14 years

was promoted to Managing Owrector and Rod Porteous the Supply
and [nvestiment Manager was promoted to Engingering Director Nick
Sheeran joined us from Novemnber as Finance and Regulation Director
| would like to pay tnbute to Nick and Andy for their major contnbution
to the Company over many years, both having served over 30 years,
and | wish them a long and happy retirement

The high level of performance demonstrated in this report s due to
the dedication and commitment of the employees and | would hke

to thank them for their efforts The management have nsen to the
challenges ansing from the last price determmation and | am cenfident
that the new Executive Team will continue to defiver good value for the
customer and shareholders

~lrn ol
)

T M Lazenby MBE
Chairman
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Our Business

Portsmouth Water provides water to 305,000 homes and businesses in an area covering 868 square kilometres from the River Meon in
Hampshire to the River Arun in West Sussex The Company serves the cities and towns of Portsmouth, Chichester, Fareham, Gosport, Havant
and Bognor Regis On average, each day it supplies approximately 176 mullon fitres of water through a network of over 3,275 kilometres of
underground mains Water supplied 15 denved from the chalk of the South Downs and 1s abstracted from wells, bareholes, springs and the River
ltchen The table below shows the major sources used by the Company dunng the year The springs at Havant and Bedhampton, which provide
28% of the total supply, are thought to be the largest group of spnngs used for public supplies in Europe

Source Actual 201112 % of Supply % of Supply
Abstraction 201112 20101

(Millkon Litres)
Spnngs at Havant & Bedhampton 18,350 28 27
River Itchen 8,006 12 12
Boreholes, Wells & Adits 40,173 60 61
Totals 66,529 100 100

A map showing the Company's area of supply and the location of its sources and treatment works 1s shown on page 17

Water from the spnngs at Havant and Bedhampton 1s treated at the Farhington treatment works and there are also complex treatment works at the
River Itchen, Lovedean, Soberton and Fishbourne The last three works accounted for approximately 6% of supplies in 2011/12 Water from the
remaining sources requires less sophisticated treatment

Portsmouth Water's charges are the lowest i England and Wales, the average annual bill for water being £91 per household, the equivalent of
25p per day In real terms, the price of water for household customers has fallen by 16 5% over the last 15 years This compares with a real
increase of 14% for the industry as a whole, as illustrated in the chart below, where the 1996/97 prices are indexed at 100

Comparison of Average Household Bills with Average Industry Tanffs

120
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110
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Index
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95
90

85

1996/97 1997/1998 1998/99 1999/00 2000/11 2001/02 2002/03 200304 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 200910 2010711 2011/12

Tite water industry 1s subject to a range of UK and EU legislation Standards, particularly those relating to the environment, are being tightened
on a regular basis and require increasing levels of investment The standards of service provided by Portsmouth Water are monitored by

three main regulators - the Water Services Regulation Authonty (Ofwat) for setiing pnces and to ensure value for custorners, the Environment
Agency (EA) for environmental protection and the Dnniang Water Inspectorate (DWI) for dninking water quality Customers are represented by
the Consumer Council for Water (CCW), which monrtors the qualty of service provided by the Company Portsmouth Water works closely with
these and other orgamsatiens interested in the services it provides

Ofwat 1s the water industry’s economtc regulator, and ts pnncipal duties are exercised through the pnce-setting process Ofwat sets price limrts
for Portsmouth Water every five years The last determination of pnces was in November 2009 for the penod 2010 to 2015 The price setting
process 1S known as the Penodic Review and involves a senes of consultations between water companies, Ofwat and the other regulators over
atwo year penod The review examines all aspects of the business and requires the Company to submit a detaled Business Plan to Ofwat
Water companies are allowed to increase prices to customers annually by inflation (RP1) plus or minus the pnce it set by Ofwat The price
Iimts reflect the revenue, which the regulator believes an efficient company needs in order to finance its operations and capital programme, after
making an assessment of potential future efficiency gains
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The pnce hrmits set for the five year penod to 2015 are as follows

2010111 201112 2012113 201314 2014115

% {reduction) i bills before inflation 48) 21) (17 {14) (06)

Long Term Resource Pianming

Dver the last twenty years, the Company has experienced falling demand for water, particularty from commercial customers The future,
however, 15 expected to see nsing demand from domestic customers, with a significant house building programme planned in the Company's
area of supply The Company’s strategy for ensunng there are sufficient water supplies to meet the demands of customers through to 2034735
15 set out in its Final Water Resources Management Plan, which was published in September 2011 The publication of the Plan follows a lengthy
penod involving twa public consultations ard the publication of numerous supporting documents

The Final Plan sets out the key elements which will ensure that the Company 1s able to continue to maintain supphes to customers for the next
25 years

Fhe Final Planning Solution in the Final Plan includes the following elements

A compulsory metenng programme utising automatic meter reading (AMR) technology over a 15 year penod from 2015-2030

A programme of leakage savings delivering a 3Ml/d leakage reduction between 2015 and 2020

The construchon of 2 Washwater Recovery Plant at Farlington Water Treatment Works m 2017/18

The development of Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservoir filled by surplus yield from the Company’s Havant and Bedhampton Springs
between 2025 and 2035

i

The Company 1s committed to sustainable development It must balance the provision of water supply with the needs of the environment and
play a part in ensuring that the UK complies with European and National environmental legislation

Ownership

The majorrty shareholder of South Downs Caprtal Limited, the uthmate holding company of Portsmouth Water Limited, 1s an Employee Benefit
Trust The employees and certain former employees are the beneficianes of this Trust which 1s controlled by a Board of five Directors, of whom
three are independent

Lagoon at the River Itchen Treatment Works site
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Business Strategy

Mission Statement
‘We ain to supply drinking water of the lnghest quality, providing hugh levels of customer service and excellent value for money'

The Company has a well developed, focused strategy which will meet the demands of all its stakeholders The key objectives are

To ensure customers enjoy reliable and secure supplies meebing all water quality standards

To maintain our standards of customer service as one of the hughest in the industry

To provide value for money by continuing to facus on operational efficiency

To mimrmise the impact on the environment to ensure we have a sustamable torg term future

To grow the business where appropnate utilising a good resource position to provide bulk supplies and trade water
To achieve returns consistent with retaining Investor confidence

The strategy will be achieved by focusing on five key 1ssues

Having a well developed and frequently updated long term water rescurces plan, which will meet the needs of the customer, through secure
water supphes, whilst respecting the environment

Putting custormers at the heart of everything we do, and ensunng that they continue to receive excellent valee for money

Masntaining our asset base

Setting goals for efficiency which gutpertorm regulatory targets

Maintaining a motivated workforce, whilst ensunng that the heafth and safety of employees i1s given the highest priorty

The progress of the Company 1s measured by a number of key performance indicators (KPI) and these are highlrghted in the following section of
the Review

Nick Ellins, the President of the Institute of Water presenting Nick Roadnight, the Managing Director of the Company from July 1997 ta December
2012, with hys water industry Iifetime achievement award
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The Hampshire Water Festival,
held at Staunton Country Park

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Current Development and Performance

Financial Performance

The results for 2011/12 reflect the 2009 Pnce Determination, made by Ofwat which
inctuded a real reduction in charges for customers in the year of 2 1% The Company has
also expenenced a 5% reduchon m demand from commercial customers dunng the penod
However these impacts have been offset by an increase in non water tanff income, mainly
related to diversion of water mains

Profit before fax

Turnover for the year increased by 3 2% to £36 7m This reflected the 2009 Pnce
Determination and an increase in mcome from mains diversien work of £0 8m and, largely as
a result of these tactors, operating profit increased to £6 5m from £6 1m in 2011 as analysed
below

201112 20101

£m £m
Turnaver 367 355
Operating costs excluding depreciation and the FRS17 pension charge 193 18 8
Operating profit betare depreciation and FR817 pension charge 174 167
Depreciation (includmg renewals) g6 83
FRS17 pension charge 23 23
Total Operating Profit 65 61

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and the FRS17 pension charge, increased by £0 5m
(2 1%} n the year despite RP! at an average of about 5% and the introduction of the Carbon
Reduction Commitment Levy of £0 2m which 1$ effectively a tax on our energy usage

Interest receivable at £1 3m (2011 - £1 2m) relates mainly to interest received from group
companies and 15 based on Libor plus 1% An increase in other finance income of £0 6m to
£2 5m represents a decrease in interest on pension scheme labilities

Interest payable at £7 7m (2011 - £7 2m) includes £4 2m for indexation of the loan provided
by Artesian Finance plc {2011 - £3 9m} The indexation of the loan for 2011 was based on
RPI for July 2011 of 5%, whereas RPI for July 2010 was 4 8% Interest on the capital sum
amounted fo £3 2m (2011 - £3 1m)

As a result of these factors, profit before tax increased to £2 7m (2011 - €0 9m) The profit
before tax in 2011 mncluded an exceptional charge of £1 1m in respect of an impairment loss
on the asset value of the Havant Thicket Winter Storage Reservorr

Taxation

The taxation credit of £1 Om was £1 2m lower than the previous year's charge of £0 2m due
to the effects of mgher rehefs against the taxable profts for the year and refunds received in
respect of prior year charges The deferred tax habiity also reduced dunng the year as a result
of the proposed 2% reduction to corporate tax rates resulting in a credit to the profit and loss
account of £0 9m

Dividends
The dividends paid during the year amounted to £2 496m (2011 - £3 385m) Dividends are
paid up to the parent company and largely used 1o service debt held by the group

Cashflow and Balance Sheet
Despite the increase in operating profit net cashflow from operations was £1 9m lower at
£157m (2011 - £17 6m}) This was the result of the following movements in working capital

— Anincrease In the debtor for unbilled measured income of £0 65m as a result of timing
differences in the biling cycle

- Anincrease In mains diversionary work in progress of £0 95m due to the very high level of
activty in this area dunng the year

Net debt (excluding deterred arrangement costs) at £88 3m (2011 - £88 3m) includes an index
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Removal of cover, carned out as a part of
the capital scheme to enhance secunty
at vanous operational locations
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linked loan with a value of £89 5m (2011 - £85 3m} The value 1s indexed each year by the
previous July's recorded RPI The increase in debt for the year 1s a result of this indexation

The level of gearing I1s an important ratio in the Company's loan covenants and 1s measured by
the ratio of net debt to the Company's Regulatory Gapital Value (RCV) which 1s determined by
Otwat at the 2009 Pnce Determination The RCV 15 also indexed by RPI but at the March (year
end) figure The rabo 15 known as the Regulatory Asset Ratio At the year end, the ratio was
762% (2011 -76 7%)

Accounting Policies
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies descnbed in note
1 to the accounts on pages 30 to 31 and with UK GAAP

Under its licence of appointment, Portsmouth Water Lirmited, a private company, is required

to pubhsh information about its annual results as f it were a Company covered by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authorty From Apnl 2005, listed groups are required to prepare
accounts i accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1tis the
Company’s view that these standards are not appropnate for a requlated water business and

it has been granted exemption, by Ofwat, such that it need only adopt IFRS when non-hsted
companies are required by statute to do so

Pensions

The Company takes account of the Brockhampton Penston Scheme, in which it is the princtpal
employer, under the pnnciples of FRS17 The latest actuanal valuation carned out for the
purposes of FRS17 showed a surplus after deferred tax of £14 7m (2011 - £21 Om) The
actual loss before deferred tax of £10 2m which 1s shown in the Statement of Total Recogmised
Gains and Losses (STRGL) on page 27 results pnmarily due to changes in assumptions
underlying the FRS17 value of scheme liabiliies

In the most recent tnenmal actuanal valuation conducted at March 2011, the Scheme had a
surplus of £21 2m Until March 2010, the Company had not made contnbutions for a number
of years For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company made contnbutions of £0 3m this
being at a rate of 12 4% of earmings

Duning the year the Company concluded a consultaion with its employees regarding proposals
1o reduce the level of future benefits in the Scheme Under the proposals, which were
implemented in August 2011, new employees will recerve a pension on a defined contribuhion
basis although for existing employees therr future benefit will remain on a defined benefit basis,
although on a career average basis The changes were made to reduce the long term cost of
providing pensions and to reduce the nsks to the Company associated with defined benefits
pensions

Key Financial Performance Indicators

Geanng (net debt/requlatory capital value) and cash interest cover are recognised as key
indicators for the Company Performance in 2011/12 against the target ratios 1s shown in the
table below

KPI- 11 Target Performance Performance

2011/12 2010M
Geanng - Debt/RCV? <80% 76 2% 76 1%
Gash interest cover? >16 189 164

' Each KPIis defined in the Appendix on page 43
2 Definitton of terms 1s contained in the Appendix on page 43

Customer Service

Otwat are now using the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) to measure the performance
of companies in relation to customer service This places greater emphasis on the quaity of
service recerved rather than the speed of response Part of this Is a qualitative assessment
survey and the results of this are shown below
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water samples in the laboratory at Havant
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Gurrent Develoomeni and Performance

KPl-2 Customer Service Measures

Target Performance Performance
201112 2010M

Number of properties at nsk of madequate pressure <120 66 66
Properties affected by unpfanned interruptions to supply NI 332 Nil
>12 hours*
Population subject to hosepipe bans Nil Nil Hil
Biling contacts - answered within 5 days 100% 100% 100%
Wiitien complants - answered within 10 days™* 100% 99 6% 99 5%
Bills for metered customers - number receving bill based 100% 100% 100%
on meter reading
Telephone contact - number of calls abandoned 525% 33% 315%
- all lines busy =07% 02% 02%
Service Incentive Mechansm - qualitative survey element <6th 2nd 2nd

- position relates to 22 companies

Number of wntten complaints per 10,000 connections™** <10 8 7

* 205 of these related to one incident

** The Company had 248 wntten complaints, so the 99 6% represents one complaint taking
longer than 10 days

*** For 2010/11, the Industry average was 61 complaints per 10,000 connections

KPI-3 Water Quality

The Company carnes out an exhaustive programme of testing to ensure that water of the
highest quality 15 supplied fo customers The table below shows the percentage number
of samples which pass the stnct standards set out In the Water Supply (Water Quaty)
Regulations

Water Quality Target Performance Performance
2011 2010
Compliance samples passing standards 99 95% 99 95% 99 96%

{mean zonal comphance)

The water quahity performance indicator relates to the calendar year

Operating Efficiency

For many years Ofwat have published a report which included ts assessment of the
comparative operating efficiency of all water cormpanies in England and Wales using
econometnc modeling Portsmouth Water has always been ranked in Band A (mostly the
highest or 2nd ighest performing company) This benefited customers through relatively
lower pnces Ofwat do not intend to publish this assessment in future, however they did use
this relative performance to set efficiency targets for the 5 year peniod to 2015 As a result,
Ofwat set an efficiency target of 0 25% per annum The table below shows the outcome
agamst this target

KPl -4 Ethiciency

Target Perfermance
201112
To achieve the Ofwat efficiency target of 0 25% per annum 432%

Captal Investment

Gross caprtal nvestment dunng the year was £8 1m (2011 - £9 6m) and included £3 9m
(2011 - £5 0m) on infrastructure renewals This was lower than usual as a major scheme to
reduce the nsk of quality and security 1ssues at the River Itchen Treatment Works was delayed
whilst ptanming permission for the work was obtained After receving capital contnbutions and
infrastructure charges of £0 9m, net capital expendrture was £7 2m (2011 - £8 7m)
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Pipe bursting of water mains being
carned out as part of the Purbrook
Heath mains renewal scheme
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Dunng the year the Company renewed 23 2km of mains (2011 — 18 3km) at a cost of £3 9m
(2011 —£5 0m)

Gross expenditure on non Infrastructure assets at £4 2m incleded £0 8m for installing
domestic meter options, £0 2m on the implementation of a new illing system and a further
£0 5m resulted from mvestment in vehicles and plant The remainder was on relatively small
projects In the Final Determination the Company was given an allowance of 5,000 domestic
meter options per year, however 1n 201 1/12, 4,046 customers chose to switch to a measured
supply At March 2012, meter penetration for the Company was 21% of household customers

Water Resources - Outlook for 2012

As detalled on page 5, 88% of water supplied to customers 15 from groundwater springs,
boreholes and wells which abstract from the underground chalk of the South Downs
Groundwater levels are therefore critical to mantaining supplies to customers The Company
has for many years monitored the groundwater level at Idsworth Well, Rowlands Castle, which
15 unaffected by abstraction and 1s representative of groundwater conditions in the South
Downs chalk

Dunng the drought of 2012 no water restrictions were applied to Portsmouth Water customers

Although seven water companies in the South East announced temporary bans in early Apni
on non essential use, often referred to as hosepipe bans, Portsmouth Water's area was not
as severely affected and we appealed to customers to show voluntary restraint in their use

of water For Portsmouth Water’s area seven of the last twelve months have recorded below
average rainfall, and whilst high rainfall in April, the wettest since 1886, has reduced demand
and therefore has had some affect on restonng groundwater levels, we continue to ask
customers to think about the way in which they use water and to use water wisely However
we do not believe for this year it will be necessary to impose further restnctions on water use
in the Portsmouth Water area

Whilst the South East of England has not expenenced three consecutive dry winters Defra

and the Environment Agency are encouraging ali of us to consider the possibility |n the South
East of England we on average use 160 Iitres of water per person every day, higher than other
parts of the UK and considerably tigher than our European neighbours The combinatien of the
recent wet weather and the strong response from customers with water use 1s already helping
to keep water avaiiable for people and the environment

At the end of May 2012, groundwater levels were in hne with the long term average as outhned
on the graph below, which includes the tharty year long term average

Idsworth Well
40
— 201213
— 2011/12
» — 2010411
—— 30 Year Average

Metres above Ordnance Datum
N

I APR | MAY | JUN | JuL | AJG | SEP | OCT | NOV | DEC | JAN | FEB | MAR |
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Gurrent Development and Performance

Leakage

Leakage for the year was recorded at an average of 29 9MI/d The leakage targets were set out
in the Company’s Business Plan for the last Periodic Review and agreed by Ofwat as part of
the Final Determination 1n 2009

KPI-5 Leakage

Target Performance 2011/12
Average leakage of less than 3J0MI/d Average leakage of 30MI/d
Employees

The Company employs 234 people and believes it recruits and retains the nght people to
ensure the successiul performance of the business Employees share in the success of the
Company through their interest in the Employee Benefit Trust

The Company Is firmly commutted to the development of its employees and that they should all
have opportunities to reach their full patential and, as a result, a number dunng the year have
undertaken Degrees, HNC’s, NVQ'’s along with associated professional qualifications

In line with this objective the Gompany fully supports the pnnciple of Modern Apprenticeships,
for example, all new employees within the Customer Services department aged under 25 are
employed through the Modern Apprenticeship scheme which leads to a mimimum NVQ level 2
qualification with many going on to achigve level 3

A key part of staff development is the Company nvolvement with the Institute of Water The
Instifute of Water 15 a professional body whose purpose Is to promote the advancement of
knowiedge within the water industry To this end, Area and Nationat Commuttees organise
meetings, seminars, technical visits and conferences, as well as a vanety of social events
These activines provide a shop window for the latest technological developments in the
industry and a ferum for the discussion of major topics The Company encourages s staff to
belong ta the loW and gamn the benefit for both their personal and professional development by
attending these events

The Company celebrated winning an Employee Business Partnership (EBP} *Amazing

People” Award In the category of “Offering Apprenticeships”, sponsored by Havant Borough
Council The awards, which are held annually, arg a celebration of the tme and commitment
businesses, schools, colleges and other partners invest i developing innovative programmes
that support young people’s preparation for adutt {ife and work

Total absence for 2011/12 (days per employee peryear) was 4 3 (2011 -3 9) This figure
compares favourably with the average for private sector employers, which stands at7 7
(Source CIPD Absence Survey Report 2011)

Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees is considered fundamental to the success of the business and
the Company 15 committed to achieving high standards across the orgamsation The Company
has put health and safety at the top of the agenda and from the Board down has made ¢ a gh
prionty

Considerable time and resources have continued to be directed into raising the awareness

of Health and Safety and the statistical results for the year 2011 show very positive results
from these efforts, with only one reportable accident (accident causing more than three days'
absence) being recorded

It is pleasing to report that our efforts have again been recognised externally through the
RoSPA Health and Safety Awards, by the Gompany being awarded the Gold Medal This is in
recognition of our Health and Safety record over the last seven years where we have received
six Gold awards and an Industry sector award This award I1s again recognition of the effarts
of all employees who should feel proud of their achievements in making the Company a safer
place
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Corporate Responsbility

Water Efficiency

2010 saw Ofwat set the Company an annual target of achieving water
savings, through water efficiency, of 0 29 mega Iitres per day (Ml/d)
This equated to an averall five year target of 1 45 Ml/d Last year saw
the Company achieve 0 25 Mi/d a shortfall of 0 04 Ml/d aganst the
target

Pleasingly this year the Company has exceeded the target by claiming
overall savings of 0 36 MI/d This inciudes clawing back the shortfall
from last year and gives us going forward a surplus of 0 03 MY/d

This excellent result was achieved by inibatives such as supplying free
water saving packs and subsidised water efficient devices such as
shower heads to customers This was in conjunction with a number
of proactive water saving campaigns in the local media such as the
“Water Saving Challenge” which 1s designed to encourage customers
to change their behaviour when 1t comes to water use

Catehment Management

Portsmouth Water have established The Downs and Harbours Clean
Water Partnership' with Natural Engtand and the Environment Agency
The partnership's objective 15 to protect and improve drinking water
quality and both nver and coastal water quality

A key 1ssue for the Partnership 1s to try and ensure that there 1s no
deterioration in the quality of our drinking water supphies which are
taken from underground aquifers This 1s achieved by advising land
owners and farmers on the best practice for the use of fertilisers and
overall land management This will prevent us in the future having

to Use expensive treatment processes to remove chemicals such as
nitrate (found in fertilisers) from drinking water

Work in the Community

2011/12 has seen the Company continue to play a valuable role in
supparting the local community such as supporting the Hampshire
Water Festival held 1n Havant and the continued sponsorship of the
Portsmouth in Bloom competrtion with the 2012 theme based on
sustainable gardening

The Company's successful education partnership with Staunton
Country Park continues to grow and this year saw the opening of the
“World of Water” within the park WOW 1s an extubrt consisting of
10 large wall mounted boards in a covered outdoor area displaying
information about saving water in a fun and mteractive way The
extubit 1s aimed at families and has a mix of information surtable for
children of primary school age

As part of our ‘Water for Heafth’ inative, which promotes the benefits
to children of dninking water, we again made available drinking water
botties at the subsidised cost of 30p per bottle to every child in a

local pnmary, infant and jumor schoo! This Inibiative remams very
popular with 30,000 bottles delivered last year and which has seen
nearly 300,000 water bottles delivered to local school children over a
number of years

The Company cantinues to offer community talks to local schools,
colleges, clubs and groups such as Age Gongern, Rotary and the
Women's Instiute as well as supporting local schools In activities
such as Science Days

WaterAid

The Company continues to support and promote the chanty WaterAid
to customers and staff Over the last 30 years donations from our
customers, together with fundraising efforts of our employees have
raised a staggenng £420,000 for WaterAid 1t 1s estmated the average
costis only £15 per person for supplying a safe water supply to a
village, combined with sanitation and hygiene education for ife

Environmental Performance

The Company recogmises its impact on the environment and seeks to
carry out its activiies in a sustainable manner, which 1s tughlighted by
the initiatives shown below

Conservation

The Company’s total licensed area of supply covers an attractive

part of Southern England between the South Downs and the coastal
areas of Hampshire and West Sussex it includes the historic ciies of
Portsmouth and Chichester, and the popular holiday resorts of Bognor
Reqis, Selsey and Haylng Island The harbours of Portsmouth,
Langstone, Ghichester and Pagham have a number of important
environmental designations under the EU Habitats Directive and are
popular water activity venues

Foflowing the implementation of abstraction licence reductions at
Havant and Bedhampton Springs and several sources in Sussex

in order {o protect habitats, the Company has agreed in principle a
licence reduction for its Gaters Mill abstraction with the Environment
Agency to preserve the River Itchen

Biodiversity Action Plan

The Company’s policy 1s to conserve and enhance the natural
environment of 1ts land and to preserve mstenc buildings and
equipment, so far as 15 consistent with the primary duty of providing a
sufficient supply of wholesome water at reasonable cost

Sustanable Procurement

In procunng goods and services, the Company has a policy which
seeks to ensure that ts impact on the environment 1 mimirmised
This includes the use of low sulphur content diesel fuel, timber
from replanted forests and predomimantly recycled matenal for
reinstatement

Ghildren from Park Community School a1 the opening of
the "World of Water' within Staunton Country Park
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management

The Company identifies nsks under six main headings - Operational,
Water Quality, Financial, Environmental, Regulatory and Health

and Safety of Employees Indvidual nsks facing the Company

are dentified and recorded in a nsk register For each nsk the
consequences, Impact and ikelhood of failure are dentified, together
with the management controls in place The register also clearly
allocates management responsibility and whether any further actions
are required to control the nsks

The Board reviews the nsk register and the controls estabhshed to
mitigate these nsks on an annual basis It also receves regular reports
on operational matters, including a monthly review of water qualrty
matters directly with the Water Quality Manager and a quarterly review
of heakth and safety matters with the Human Resources Manager The
Directors also receve reports from independent regulatory bodies,
which comment on the performance of the core water business

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year, monitors the
effectiveness of the systems which are n place and reports to the
Board as a whole

Operational Risk

The key operational nsks facing the Company are the loss of a
treatment works or part of the mans network, which would resuttin 2
fallure to supply water to customers To mrtigate this nsk, the supply
network has been enhanced over several years to connect different
supply areas, such that in most situations water can be transferred to
compensate for a failure at a treatrment works The Company also has
a fully documented Emergency Plan which 1s iitiated in the event of
an incident, tmpacting erther its abity to supply water to the public or
resulting in a water quality 1ssue

Water Quahty Risk

To ensure water quality standards are maintamned, the Company has

a fully documented Drinking Water Safety Plan which identifies the
potenbial nsks throughout the supply process Water quality 1s also
monitored by a comprehensive sampling regime n accordance with
statutory legislabon Furthermore, a telemetry system linked to all
treatment works provides an alarm to our 24 hour Operations Centre if
there is a failure of equipment The Company also mantains two days’
storage of treated water in service reservoirs to provide sufficient time
for any water quality 1ssues at treatment works to be rectified before
suppty to custormers In addition, it has membrane filtration at five
treatment works considered most at nsk from eryptospondium being
present n the raw water

Financial Risk

Interest Rate, Liquidity, Capital and Credit Risk

The majar financial nsks faced by the Company are interest rate,
liquidity, caprtal and credit nsks The Company assesses these nsks
on an ongoing basis and its policies for managmg them remain
unchanged from previous penods

The Company's exposure to interest rate fluctuations 1s now mited
by the fixed interest rate applicable to the index-linked loan drawn

In 2002, with inflation nisks on the cost of the loan being effectively
hedged aganst regulated revenues which are also hinked to the RPI
Interest 15 charged at a fixed rate of 3 635% on the indexed amount of
the loan The indexed value of the loan at 31 March 2012 was £89 5m
{2011 - €85 3m)

The Company seeks to manage financial nsk, to ensure sufficient
liquidity 15 avallable to meet foreseeable needs through an appropnate
borrowing structure and to invest cash assets safely and profitably
on the short term market In 2011/12 all of the short term cash was
deposited with the Company’s Bankers, RBS Short term hquidity 15
achieved through a £10m working capital facidity and an overdraft
arrangement At the end of the year, £1 Om of this facility had been
drawn (2011 - £4 5m}, while the overdraft arrangement remained
unutiised The £10m facility, which terminates in August 2013, was
arranged in August 2010 and replaced a £15m faciity that was due
for renewal

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the entity’s ability t0 continue as a going concern, so it can provide
returns for shareholders and benefit to customers

The Company’s exposure to credit nsk results from the continuing
impact of bad debt on its ability to collect water revenues It seeks to
minimise this nsk by utiising all avalable means, including the use of
a dedicated debt recovery section, agencies for collecting outstanding
debt and the following of best practice guidehnes

Financial Loss

The nsk of finangial loss 1s addressed through comprehensive
nsurance cover for a range of nsks, including damage to property,
public and emptoyee hability, fraud and terronsm A system of internal
controls 15 in place to manage the nsks, the details of which are
Included in the Staterment on Corporate Governance on pages 23

to 25 In early 2007, the Auditors conducted a special review of the
Company’s internal control systems The review did not reveal any
significant weaknesses and 1t has recently been updated to reflect
system changes A disaster recovery plan is also in place to enable
the Company to operate in the event of an incident disrupting its
computer systems At a remote site ten mules from its Head Office, the
Company has an addional manframe computer, which is ‘backed up’
every evening, and several workstations for employees to operate

Energy now represents around 10% of total operating costs and
fluctuating prices can have a matenal impact on profrtability To
mitgate against the impact of pnce movements we fixed the
wholesale price of energy in October 2011 until December 2014 at a
price considerably lower than we paid in 2010/11

Emaronmental Risk

The major emaronmental nsk faced by the Company at the present
time 15 a potential loss of abstraction licence resultmg from measures
that may be required by the EA to allow the UK to comply with the
Water Framework Directive Over the next few years the Company

15 undertaking a study to identify the impact of s abstraction at key
ponts and to dentify solutions where required

The flooding in vanous parts of the UK dunng the summer of 2007
has prompted several national reports Whilst the Company was not
affected in 2007, 1t has conducted an assessment of the nsks at each
of its sites and included a small amount of expenditure which was
allowed in the Final Determmation of pnces to remedy those sites
where there 1s a nsk of damage as a result of flooding

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory nsk relates to decisions taken by Ofwat at the five yearty
price review and the potential failure to meet the level of service and
capital pragramme agreed with Qfwat for the AMP 5 penod, which
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Risks and Ungerainiiss
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could result :n Ofwat taking action, in¢luding financial penalties The
price review 15 conducted in an open and transparent manner and

the Company actively participates in the process The performance
aganst the regulatory targets i1s reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Board or the Executive Directors The annual performance against the
targets 15 discussed on pages 10 to 11

In the Iast 18 months, iwat have been reviewing therr approach to
Regulation and Future Pnce setting in their Programme ‘Sustainable
Water' and in October 2011 they published their consultation
document on “Regulatory Compliance” A key objective of this review
I to reduce the regulatory burden and we support their efforts in

this We also sepport therr proposals to focus on overall outcomes
rather than continue with the intensive requirement for information and
increasingly complex price reviews For future pnce reviews Ofwat
are proposing to include separate pnce hmits for retail and wholesale
elements We are concerned that this will increase complexity and add
to the burden for smaller companies

In December 2011 Ofwat published its paper on the “Water Industry
Act 1991, Section 13 proposals by Ofwat to modify the corditions of
appointment of all water only and water and sewerage companies”
The Company responded to this consuttation in February 2012 and, in
common with all the other water companies in the industry, rejected
its proposals

The Company feels a deep sense of disquiet about the changes
proposed The hcence provides it with important protections that
cannot be adequately replicated for a small company by the chance
to influence price review methodologees or the potential to refer

our determinations to the Competriion Commission The Company
accepts the need for some changes to the licence but these should
be no more than 1s stnctly needed to carry out the 2014 pnce review
The Company does not consider that Ofwat's section 2 duties under
the Water Industry Act 1991 or the legitmate expectations Ofwat
have created, through statements about the protection of the RCV and
the link to RPI tor wholesale controls for example, provide sufficient
assurance for it to accept the type of icence modifications Ofwat set
out tn thetr December consultation, particularly as the statements
only apply up to 2020 As a way forward the Company beleves
Ofwat should examine proposed licence modifications after they have
pubhished the methodology statement for the 2014 price review The
Company 1s particulasly concerned about possible changes atter the
2015-20 penod, where under Qfwat's current licence modifications
the Company fe¢ls it would lose all control aver proposals that could
have a detnmental tmpact on its business

Compehition in the Water Industry

In 2008, the Secretary of State for Defra announced an independent
review of competrtion and innovatien in water markets The review
was 10 be led by Professor Martin Cave of Warwick University The
Final Report of this review was published 1n 2009, which concluded
that the careful introduction of competion would help the Industry to
meet the challenges it faced in the future

The report proposed that competstion should be introduced imitially
In retail for business customers and in water abstraction and then
over time into upstream actvity including freatment A step by
step approach was recommended to examine the benefit at each
stage The report also suggested that to obtain the full benehits

of competition the whole retar! element {(household and business
customers) should be separated from the vertcally integrated

water company as a separate business, even though only business
customers would be the subject of competition

The Water White Paper, “Water for Life” was published in December
2011 Subseguently the EFRA Select Committee launched an enquiry
into the White Paper and the Company responded to this in January
2012 The Company 1s broadly supportive of the proposals in the
White Paper (especially the decision not to require the legal separation
of the retaill business) afthough it does leave many questions
unanswered We await the publication of the Draft Water Bill, in due
course

Ofwat have been extremely active in considenng how competition will
work in the industry and have prepared a number of discussIon papers
and has continued to work on its accounting separation project which
seeks to analyse cost into several business activities, mcluding retail

For its part the Company has partcipated i the discussions on

the 1ssues involved in market reform and 1s considenng how it will
respond to any changes The Company 15 supportive of wider water
trading and believes this can be achieved by offering greater incentive
to companies to utilise bulk supplies We also recognise that the
introduction of retail competition for a greater number of business
customers may well yield overall benefits, however it believes that
wider market reform should only be pursued where the net benefit can
be clearly demonstrated

Health and Satety

The heakh and safety of employees 1 taken very serously and a
number of initiatives have been introduced over several years to
reduce the number of accidents and the impact of injury

These mclude

A Health and Safety Commuttee compnsing Management and the
Trade Unions

A nisk assessment programme that has seen aver 500
assessments produced

A systemn of workplace inspection ensunng that all manned
premises are inspected at least twice per year

— Specific training for those at igh nsk of injury

A imited free physiotherapy service for employees to deal with

njuries
/Lm . U%g@/ —_—
N Snuth N Sheeran

Managing Director Finance and Regulation Director

24 May 2012
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office
PO Box 8

West Street
Havant
Hampshire

POS 1LG

Telephone 023 9249 9888
Facsimile 023 9245 3632
Website www portsmouthwaterco uk

Company Number 2536455
Company Secretary Chnstopher Hardyman ACIS

Facts and Figures

Area of Supply

Population

Number of Properties Served
Length of Mains

Average Daily Qutput

Auditors

Saffery Champness
Lion House

Red Lion Street
London WC1R 4GB

Bankers

National Westminster Bank plc
PO Box 34

15 Bishopsgate

London EC2P 2AP

Insurance Brokers
Heath Lambert Group
27-31 Fleet Street
Swindon

Wiltshire SN1 1RG

868 km?
656,000
305,000
3,275 km
176 MI
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AREA OF SUPPLY

Portsmouth Water has been supplying water to Portsmouth and the surrounding area since 1857 The area supplied by the Company extends
through South East Hampshire and West Sussex from the River Mean 1n the West to the River Arun in the East encompassing 868 square
kilometres

The Company provides high quality public water supplies to a domestic population of 639,000, as well as many important industnes, large
defence establishments and vaned commercial businesses
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Principal Activity and Business Review

The Campany 1s a water supplier operating under an Instrument of
Appontment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment
under the Water Industry Act 1991

Water is supplied to 656,000 domestic and commercial customers
In an area of 868 square kilometres in Hampshire and West Sussex
through a mains netwark of 3,275 kilometres

The Company's Area of Supply 15 shown on page 17 of this report

A detailed review of operations for the year 1s provided in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review on
pages 4 to 15

Financral Risk Management Gbjectives and Policies

A detailed review of the Company’s financial nsk management
objectives and the policies employed are set out in the Operating and
Financial Review on page 4 and i note 18 to the accounts on page
37

Financial Results and Dividends

The Company’s profit before taxabon amounts to £2 650m (2011
-£0 868m) After adding the tax benefit of £1 016m which mainly
anses from reductions to tax rates (2011 - charge of £0 180m), a
profit of £3 666m has been transferred to reserves (2011 - £0 688m)

The Directors are recommendsng the payment of a final dwvidend of
£0 848m (2011 - £1 192m)

Fixed Assels

Capital expenditure on tangible fixed assets was £8 127m (2011

- £9 552m), ncluding £3 913m on infrastructure renewals (2011 -
£5014m) Information relating to these and other changes in fixed
assets 1s shown in note 10 to the accounts on page 34

The Directors are of the opimon that the current market value of the
land and buildings included n tangible fixed assets 1s 1n excess of the
value shown in the balance sheet

As they are held for operational purposes, no professional valuation
has been obtained and the excess has not, therefore, been quantrfied

Board of Direclors
The Directors who held office at 24 May 2012 are shown on page 3

Mr N J Sheeran and Mr R C Porteous who retire by rotation, offer
themselves for electron They both have one year service contracts
with the Company

Mr N J Roadmight retired on 16 December 2011 and Mr N J
Sheeran was appointed on 9 December 2011

Mr A R Neve retired on 30 Apnl 2012 and Mr R C Porteous was
appointed on 1 May 2012

The interests of the Directors in Group shares are detailed in the
Report on Remuneration on page 23

The Company maintains appropnate Directors’ indemnity insurance

GCreditor Payment Policy

The Company does not intend to follow any specific code or standard
in relation to payment practice In the absence of dispute, bills will be
settled in accordance with the suppliers’ terms Where such terms are
considered unreasonable, the Gompany will seek to agree atternative
payment arrangements to suit both parties At 31 March 2012, the
Company's creditor days were 22 (2011 - 16}

Substantial Shareholder
At 31 March 2012, Portsmouth Water Heldings Limited owned the
entire voting capital of the Company

Regulatory Accounts

A set of accounts for regulatory purposes 1s required by the Water
Services Regulahon Authonty These accounts relate solely to the
regulated water supply business and copies may be obtained on
request from the Registered Office

Employees

Direct communication with employees 1s mantained through the
Company in-house newsletter In addrtion, the Joint tnformation

and Consultative Committee met regularly and ensured effective
communication with employee representalives

The Directors consider health and safety to be an important issue
within the Company, with the active participation of employee safety
representatives taking place through the Heath and Safety Committee
Dunng the year, a number of inithatives were undertaken, which
ensured that health and safety continues to maintain its high profile
throughout the orgamisation

The Company has, for the last seven years, been awarded six Gold
Awards In the RoSPA Occupational Health and Safety Awards and was
also awarded an Industry Sector Award in 2009

The Company has adopted a policy which complies with the Disatnlity
iscnmination Act 1995 Every consideration is given to applications
for employment from disabled persons, where the job requirements
may be adequately covered by a handicapped or disabled person
Employees who become disabled dunng employment are given
continued employment where possible and opportunrties for training
and career development are provided for all disabled employees

The pension scheme to which the Company’s employees belong
makes provision for retirement due 1o (ll-heatth or disablement

Environment

The Company 15 most aware of its obligations to both customers and
the environment In recent years, 1t has adopted an active approach
to environmental 1ssues and further iInformation 1s set out in the
Operating and Financial Review on pages 5to 15

Donations

The Company actively supports the Water Industry chanty WaterAid
and, dunng the year, customers were invited to make donations to
WaterAu at the time of paying their water bills The Company also
made chantable donations during the year amounting to £600 (2011
- £500)
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Licence Reqguirement

In accordance with its Instrument of Appointment under the

Water Industry Act 1991, the Directors are of the opimion that the
Company 1s n comphance with paragraph 3 1 of Condibion "X’ of that
Instrument

Audifors

The Audttors, Saffery Champness, have expressed their willingness
to continue m office and a resolution providing for their reappointment
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

In so far as the Directors are aware

— there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware, and

— the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditors are aware of that information

Z OB

By order of the Board

C Hardyman ACIS
Secretary

Havant

24 May 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors are commudted to high standards of corporate
governance and support the principles set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the 'Code’) This report and the Report on
Remuneration descnbe how the Company complies with those
prnciples

COMPLIANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year with the provisions of
the Combined Cade, other than as indicated below

As the ultmate shareholders of the Company have representation at
Board meetings, it 1s not therefore considered necessary to have a
senior independent non-executive Director (code provision A 4 1}

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Managing Director is not required {o retire by rofation and seek re-
election (code provision B 7 1)

The three non-executive Directors have all served on the Board for
more than nine years from the date of thew first election A two year
plan to replace all these Directors has been agreed with Ofwat (code
provision B 7 1)

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board of Directors retains full and effective control of the
Company and s collectively responsible for setting its strategy,
ensunng appropnate resources are in place to meet objectives and
monitonng performance

The non-executive Directors play a full part by constructvely
challenging and contributing to the development of strategy They are
responsible for determining appropnate levels of remuneration for the
executive Directors and tor recommending new appointments to the
Board

The members of the Board and the roles of each Director are shown
on page 3, together with biographical notes The Charmanis Mr T M
Lazenby MBE and the Managing Director s Mr N Smith The Board
has not appointed a semor independent non-executive Director

The Board meets monthly and has a schedule of matters specifically
reserved to t for decision [t has control of the Company, but
delegates the day to day conduct of busingss to the executive
Dtrectors and their semor management colleagues However, there are
a number of matters which must only be decided by the Board as a
whole, including strategy, all contracts over £150,000, dvidend policy
and certain regulatory matters

20

Commuttee membership, number of formal meetings held dunng the
year and attendance are shown in the following table

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
held attended

Audit
R J Tennant {Chairman) 3 3
T M Lazenby MBE 3 3
R L Sullvan 3 3
Nomination
T M Lazenby MBE (Chairman) 3 3
N Smith 3 1
R L Sullivan 3 3
R J Tennant 3 3
N J Roadnight 3 2
Remunerahon
R L Sullvan (Chairman) 5 5
TM Lazenby MBE 5 5
R J Tennant 5 5
Full Board
T M Lazenby MBE (Chaman) 12 12
A R Neve 12 12
N J Roadmight 12 &
N J Sheeran 12 5
N Smith 12 1
R L Sullvan 12 12
R J Tennant 12 12

The number of meetings attended by both Mr N J Roadmight and Mr
N J Sheeran is affected by the factthat Mr N J Roadnight retired on
16 December 2011 and Mr N J Sheeran was not appointed unti 9
December 2011

The Chairman talks with and holds meetmgs on an nfarmal basis with
the other non-executive Directors without the executives present The
non-executive Directors meet without the Chairman present annually
to apprasse his performance

There were no circumstances ansing dunng the year where it was
necessary to record unresclved concerns in the Board minutes

Chairman and Managing Director
The roles of Charman and Managing Director are separate with a clear
division of responsibilities between them

The Ghairman 1s responsible for leading the Board and ensunng its
effectiveness He facilitates the contribution of the non-executive
Directors and the relationship between them and the executive
Directors

Board Balance and Independence

The Board compnses a non-executve Chairman, three executive
Directors and two other non-gxecutive Directors The non-executive
Directors bring a wide range of expenence and knowledge to the
Board, which complements the expertise of their executive Director
colleagues They are all considered to be mdependent of management

The Board considers that its structure achieves an appropnate balance
of authonty at the head of the Company, such that no one individual
has an unfettered power of decision
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Appointments to the Board

The Nomnation Committee compnses the Managing Director, Mr N
Smith, and the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr T M
Lazenby MBE {Chairman), Mr R L Sullivan and Mr R J Tennant

It 15 responsible for recommending new appointments to the Board
Decisions regarding the appomntment of Directors are taken by the
Board as a whole The Nomination Commitiee met three times dunng
the year

The terms and condhons of appointment of non-executive Directors
are available for inspection

Information and Professional Development

Information 1s circulated to the Board in a timely fashion to ensure that
all Directors are fully bnefed on all issues ansing at Board meetings
They are free to seek any further information considered necessary

All Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary
and may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense In the furtherance of their duties

Performance Evaluation

Dunng the year, a formal performance evaluation of the Board, its
committees and its Directors was undertaken Each Director was
required to complete a questionnaire, the responses to which were
reviewed by the Board as a whole The non-executive Directors

also met without the executives to consider the performance of the
Board and ts committees, and without the Chairman to appraise his
performance The executive Directors are subject to a formal appraisal
of performance which is reviewed by the Chairman The Chairman
also meets with each non-executive Director to review indvidual
performance The evaluation concluded that the Board and rts
committees operated effectively, and that each Director demonsirated
commitment to the role and performed effectively

Re-Elechon

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors, with the exception of the Managing Director, are required to
retire by rotation and one third of the Board must seek re-election each
year All Directors are subject to election at the first Annual General
Meeting after their appointment

REMUNERATION
Policy and practice in relation to Directors’ remuneration 1s dealt with
in full in the Report on Remuneration on pages 23 and 24

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financiat Reporting

The Board believes that the Annual Report and Accounts play an
important part in presenting a clear, batanced and understandable
assessment of the Company's posmion and prospects This 1S
supported by the Chairman’s Statement, together with a more detaled
analysis of operations and financial matters in the Gperating and
Financial Review

Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the Company's system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such a system s designed
to minimise rather than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve
busmness objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance agamnst matenal misstatement or loss There has been no

significant changes in the system of internal control during the year

The Board 15 of the view that there 1s an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the Company's significant nsks,
that it has been In place for the year ended 31 March 2012 and up

to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, that it Is
regularly reviewed by the Dhrectors and that it accords with the intemal
control guidance for Directors in the UK Corporate Governance Code

The key procedures, which have begn established with a view to
providing effective internal control, are as follows

Orgarisation

The Company’s activities are operated through a Board of Directors
with clearly defined reporting lines and delegation of authonrty The
Drrectors meet at least monthly to consider a schedule of matters
required to be brought to them for decision A standing sub-committee
of the Board meets fortightly for the purpose of ensunng that full and
effective control 1s maintained over appropnate financial, regulatory
and operational 155ues

Budgetary Control

Each year the Duwrectors approve an annual plan produced from a
comprehensive budgeting system Actual results are reported against
the approved plan on a monthly basis to provide a timely and regular
monitoring of performance

Investment Appraisal

The Company has a clearly defined framework for assessing capial
expenditure needs and options, while post project appraisal looks

at relevant improvement in the internal control procedures Board
approval I1s required for any project exceeding a quantified expenditure
level

Business, Operational and Complance Risks

The Company assesses the nsks facing its business on an ongomng
basis and has identdied them under six main headings - operational,
water quality, financial, environmental, regulatory and heaith and
safety of employees They are subject to regular reporting to the
Directors The Board reviews the controls estabhshed to mitigate these
nsks and ifs insurance requirement on an annual basis The Directors
also receive reports from independent regulatery bodies, which
comment on the performance of the core water business

At the Apnl 2012 Board meeting, the Directors carned out their annual
assessment for the year to 31 March 2012, including consideration of
events since the year end

Audit Commitiee and Auditors

The Audit Commities compnises the three non-executive Directors
Mr R J Tennant (Charman), Mr T M Lazenby MBE andMr R L
Sullvan

It meets at least three times dunng the year The purpose of the
Committee 1s to ensure the preservation of good financial practices
throughout the Company, to monitor that controls are in force to
ensure the integnty of those practices, to review the interim and
annual hnancial statements and to provide, by way of imely meetings,
a line of communication between the Board and the external auditors

The Commuittee has formal Terms of Reference, which deal with
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its authonties and duties It has primary responsibility for making a
recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and remgval

of the external auditors It also reviews annually arrangements by
which staff of the Company may, m confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matiers

The Commuttee reviews the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors  This includes reviewing the nature and extent of
non-audit services supplied by the external auditors to the Company,
seeking to balance objectivity and value for money The only non-audit
services provided dunng the year were thase expected 1o be provided
by the external auditors

The Committee does not consider that an internal audst function 15
required for the Company due to the size and nature of the business
This recommendation 1s reviewed annually

GOING CONCERN

The Operating and Financial Review on pages 5 to 15 along with note
18 to the accounts sets out the Company’s financial posiion, cash
flows, liquidsty positton, borrowing facilities, objectives, policies and
processes for managmg capital, financial nsk management objectives,
exposures to credit and iquidity nsk

As highlighted on page 14 the Company meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through a £10m working capital facility that was
arranged in August 2010, and terminates in August 2013

The Company's financial projections, taking into account expected
changes in trading performance show that the Company is forecast to
operate within the level of its current facility

The Company will open renewal negohations with the bank in due
course and has, at this stage, not sought any written commitment
that the faciity will be renewed However, the Company has held
discussion with its bankers about its future borrowing needs and no
matters have been drawn to its attention to suggest that renewal may
not be forthcoming on aceeptable terms

Therefore the Directors report that, following the above review, they
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in prepanng the accounts
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REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This report has been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2606 and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authonty

INFORMATION NOT SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met on five occasions dunng the year to consider and approve, on behalf of the Board, the condimons of service
of the executive Directors of the Company t compnses the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr R L Sullivan (Chairman of the
Remuneration Comrmittee}, Mr T M Lazenby MBE and Mr R J Tennant

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The objective 1s to attract, retain and motate high calibre senior executives through pay arrangements winch are competiive and fair and
reasonable for the responsibilies involved In addition to indwidual performance, reference 1s made to pay levels in companies of simiar size
and within the same industry

The remuneration package of the executive Directors, as reported in the accounts, includes a performance related element The performance
related element 1s based upon the achievernent of agreed financial, customer service and personal targets for the whole of the previous year

The executive Directors have one year service contracts with the Company, which are in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the 'Code") None of the exacutive Directars serves as a non-executive Director for another company The non-executive Directors do not have

service contracts

The service contracts of the executve Directors include notice penods of one year, both by the Company and by the Director There are no

provisions for termination payments, other than payments for the penod of notice

Fees payabie to the non-executive Directors are determined by the Board as a whole and reflect the time, commitment and responsibilities of the

le
No Director 1S invoived in deciding his own remuneration

INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT

Directors’ remuneration 2012 2011
£000 £000
Total remuneration 515 485
Highest paid Director 137 166
Remuneration 1s analysed by Director below Total Total
Salary/Fees Benefits 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Executive

A R Neve 109 15 124 118
N J Roadnight {retired 16 December 2011) 107 28 135 166
N J Sheeran {(appointed 9 December 2011) 36 5 41 -
N Smith 120 17 137 126

Non-executive
T M Lazenby MBE (Chairman) 34 - 3 33
R L Sulivan 22 - 22 21
R J Tennant 22 - 22 21
45() 65 515 485

Fees pad in respect of Mr T M Lazenby MBE are paid to Seamab Consuttancy Limited
Benefits compnise company cars and medical insurance

Long-term incentive schemes
The Gompany does not operate any long-term performance linked bonus scheme
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Share oplions

The Company does not operate an Executive Share Option Scheme

The Directors’ beneficial heldings of shares in South Downs Capital Limited, the ultimate parent undertaking, are detailed below and, n total,
represent 24% of the 1ssued share capital of that Company They have no interests in the shares of Portsmouth Water Limited

‘C’ Ordnary Shares
A R Neve 300
N Smith 450
Mr N J Roadnight left service on the 16 December 2011 but continues te have a beneticial holding of 550 shares in South Downs Capital Limited

Pensions
The Company participates 1 the Brockhampton Pension Scheme to provide defined benefits for its employees, mcluding the executive Directors

Benetits in kind relating to company cars are considered to be part of pensionable pay for all employees under the Scheme

The executive Directors have accrued pension benefits under the Brockhampton Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefits scheme, durng
the year as detatled below

Increase in Accumulated Accurnulated

Accrued Pension Transfer Accrued Accrued

During Year to Value of Pension at Pension at

31 March 2012 Increase 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000

A R Neve! 1 21 82 77
N J Roadmight2 1 7 109 103
N Smith3 2 41 69 64

The accumulated accrued pension Is the leaving service benefit to which the Director would be entitled to f he were to leave service at the end
of the year Itincludes any benefits earned as an employee pnor to becoming a Director, as well as those earned for qualifying services after
becoming a Director

The increase n accrued pension excludes any increase for inflation, as measured by the Consumer Price Index

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in accordance with the basis adopted by the Trustees of the Scheme for
calculating cash equivalent transier values (which was agreed by the Trustees on 22 December 2011) The transfer value of the increase 1s then
reduced by the amount of each member’s contribution paid durning the year

'In accordance with the rules, Mr A R Neve's pension has been capped at two-thirds of tis pensronable earmings

2Mr N J Roadmight left service on 16 December 2011 therefore his leaving service benefit 1s his entitied benefit using his actual date of leaving
revalued to 1 Apnil 2012

The pensionable salary used to calculate Mr N Smith's accrued pension excludes £2,000 of non-pensionable salary

o &Wp

By order of the Board

T M Lazenby MBE
Chairman

Havant

24 May 2012
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Durectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
the financial statements i accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {Unrted Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under company faw the Directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and

the profit and loss of the Company for that period In prepanng those
financial staternents, the Directors are required to

- select sutabte accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

- make judgements and estimales that are reasonable and prudent,

— state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained m the
financial statements, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it 15 nappropnate to presume that the Company will continue m
business

The Directors are responsible for

— keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the
Company and which enable them to ensure that the financiat
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
- safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties, and
- under apphcable law and regulations, including the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, the Directors are also responsible for
prepanng a Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with the
requrernents of that law and those regulations In retation to the
latter, the Directors represent that, to the best of ther knowledge
and belief
— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets,
habiities, financial positton and financial result for the year
ended 31 March 2012, and

— the Directors’ Report and information referenced therein,
taken together, includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company, together with a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of
the corporate and fimancial information included on the Company’s
website Legistation in the United Kigdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other junsdictions

@

By order of the Board

C Hardyman ACIS
Secretary

Havant

24 May 2012
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AUDIT REPORT

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Portsmouth Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Portsmouth Water Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2012, which compnse the profit and

loss account, the statement of total recognised gains and losses, the
balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framewaork that has been appled i their preparation
1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s rmembers, as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audst work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
i an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyane other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, far ts report, or for the opmions we have
formed

Respective Responsibibties of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibibty 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements, and the part of the Report en Remuneration to be audited,
n accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on
Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sutficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free frorm matenal
misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of

the financial statements In addibion, we read all of the financial and
non-financial information 1n the Annual Report to identfy matenal
meonsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the fmancial statements

- Qe atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at
31 March 2012 and its profit for the year then ended, and

- have been properly prepared i accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinson on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opition

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared n accordance with the Companes Act
2006, and

~ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year

for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in
our opnion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been recewed from branches not
visited by us, or

- the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audded are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

— we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audrt

"\ /\/\4/\)

Nicholas Kelsey
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of

Saffery Champness
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

Lion House

Red Lion Street
London

WC1R 4GB

6 July 2012
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 March 2012
Notes 2012 2011
£000 £000
Turnover 2 36,665 35,515
Cost of sales (20,301) (19,708)
Gross proht 16,364 15,807
Net operating expenses 3 (9,850) {9,699)
Operating profit 6,514 6,108
(Loss) on sale of fixed assets (21) (8)
Profit on ordinary activities before exceptional item 6,493 6,100
Exceptignal item - {1,086)
Profit on ordinary activihes before interest 6,493 5014
Interest recevable 5 1,317 1,178
Other finance income 28 2,492 1,897
10,302 8,089
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (7,652) (7,221)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7 2,650 868
Taxation on profit on ordinary activiiies 8 1,016 (180)
Profit for the tinancial year 20 3,664 688
The profit and loss account has been prepared n the basis that all operations are continuing operations
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31 March 2012
Notes 2012 2011
£000 £000
Profit for the financial year 3,666 688
Actuanal (loss)/gain on pension scheme 28 {10,245) 14,904
Deferred tax relating to actuanal loss/(gain) on pension scheme 17 2,561 (4,024)
Eftect of change to corporation tax rale on pension asset (155) {226)
Total recogmsed gans and losses relating to the year (4,173) 11,342
Prior year adjustment - 389
Total gains and losses recognised since last financial statements (4,173) 11,73

The accompanying notes form an ntegral part of these accounts
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2012

Note 2012 2012 2011 201

£000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 94,469 95,876
Investments 11 59,468 153,937 59,468 155,344
Current assets
Stocks 596 520
Debtors 12 6,516 4,698
Investments 13 4 4
Cash at bank and in hand 14 2,563 1,746

9,679 6,968
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 15 {15,946) (17,243)
Net current hahilifies {5,867) {(10,275)
Total assets less corrent habilities 148,070 145,069
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (88,924) (85,070
Prowisions fos habihibes 17 {9,940} {10,419}
Net assets excluding pension asset 49,206 49,580
Pension asset 28 14,674 20,969
Net assets including pension asset 63,880 70,549
Capital and reserves
Called up share captal 19 1,078 1,078
Share premium account 20 1,539 1,539
Capital redemption reserve 20 3,250 3,250
Prohit and loss account 20 58,013 64,682
Shareholders’ funds 21 63,880 70,549

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these accounts

The accounts were authonsed for1ssue and approved by the Board on 24 May 2012, and signed on its behalf by,

T oz

T M Lazenby MBE
Chairman

Company Number 2536455
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Notes 2012 2012 2011 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000

Net cash inflow from operating achvities 22 15,718 17,556
Returns on investments and servicing of inance
Interest receved 1,312 1,177
Interest paid {3,354) {2,042) {3,283) {2,106)
Taxation
UK corporation tax paid (14) (858)
Payments for group relief {179) (193) (164) {1,022
Capial expenditure and financial svestment .
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {7,593) {10,628)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 6 21
Capital contnbutions recewed 917 {6,670) 877 (9,728)
Equity dividends paid (2,496) {3,389)
Cash nflow before management
of liqud resources and financing 4,317 1,315
Management of hquid resources
{Purchase) of short term deposits (65) (75
Financing )
Repayment of loans (3,500) (1,500
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 23 752 (260)

The accompanying notes form an itegral part of these accounts
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Accounting Policies

The accounts have been prepared under the istoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and with the provisions of the Companies Act 20086, except for the treatment of
capital contnbutions as detailed in note 1 (c)

In view of the licence conditions under which the Company operates as a water supplier, it has to publish information about ris annual results
as if it were a company covered by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, except where it 1s considered inappropnate to do so
Earmings per share disclosures required by FRS 22 are not presented as the Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary

The prncipal accountng polictes, which have been applied consistentty, are as follows
{a) Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents the income recewvable for goods and services provided to external custemers in the
ordinary course of business It compnses the value of water supplied and other related charges Turnover from the regulated water business
includes amounts billed for the year, together with an estimation of amounts unbilled at the year end, for measured water customers
Unmeasured incame hills are based on the rateable value of properties Measured income anses from customers who have meters fitted at their
premises and amounts billed, therefore, are based on actual water consumption The estimation of the amounts unbilled at the year end uses a
defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed, which 1s calculated from histoncal customer data

(b) Fixed assels

(1) Infrastructure assets - mains

Infrastructure assets compnise a network of systems Expendiure on infrastructure assets relating to increases i capacity or enhancement of
the network and on maintaining the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of service is treated as an addtion
and included n tangibte fixed assets at cost The cost of mfrastructure assets Is ther purchase cost together with incidental expenses of
acquisition and directly attnbutable labour costs which are incremental to the Company

The depreciation charge on infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating capabiity of the
network, based on an independently certified asset management plan

(i) Other assets

Other assets compnse buildings and reservoirs, pumping plant, vehicles, mobile plant and office equipment The cost of other assets 1s their
purchase cost together with incidental expenses of acquisiton and directly attnbutable labour costs which are incremental to the Company
Depreciation 15 provided on all other fixed assets with the exception of freehold land 1t 15 calculated to write off the cost of assets less estimated
residual values over ther estmated useful economic lives using the straight ine method Those lives are estimated as follows

Bulldings and Reservotrs 100 years
Pumping Plant 15-25 years
Vehicles and Mobile Plant 5-7 years
Office Equipment 7 years

(c) Capital contributions

(1) Mains contributions

in certain circumstances third parties make non-returnable contributions towards the cost of specific iInfrastructure assets They are treated as
capital contnbutions and the Directors consider it appropnate that, in order to present a true and fair view, they should be deducted from fixed
assets, as shown n note 10 to the accounts on page 34 In accordance with the Compares Act 2006 requirement to include foxed assets at
cost, such contributtons would normally be treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account gver the useful hfe of the
corresponding assets However, the assets to which they relate do not have determinable finite lives and, accordingly, no basis exists on which
to recognise those contnbutions as deferred income

() Infrastructure charges

Infrastructure charges are made in respect of new connectrons i accordance with Condrtion ‘C’ of the Instrument of Appointment These
charges are treated as capal contnbutions and deducted from fixed assets, as more fully explained in note 1 (c){1) above

(d) Investments

Investments are stated at the lower of cost or net reabisable value
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(e) Stacks

Stocks of raw matenals are valued at the lower of cost or net reabsable value In accordance with established practice in the water industry, no
value 15 placed upon the water in reservoirs, mams or i the course of treatment

(1) Deferred faxation

Deferred tax I1s recognised on all timing differences where the transactions or events that give the Company an obligation to pay more tax in the
future, or the nght to pay less taxn the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogmised when it 1s more
Iikely than not that they will be recovered Defersed tax 15 measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

The deferred tax balances have been discounted using a post-tax yield to matunty that could be obtained at the balance sheet date on
government bonds with matunty dates similar to when the timing differences are expected to reverse

(g) Leases

All leases are regarded as operating leases Operating lease payments are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the
penod of the lease

(h) Pension costs and other post retirement benefits

Portsmouth Water Lirmited 1s the principal employer and its parent company, Brockhampton Holdings Limited, 1s the participating employer in the
Brockhampten Penston Scheme This scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee administered
fund

The current service costs are charged to the profit and loss account and included as staff employment costs The interest cost and expected
return on assets are shown as a net amount within other finance income Actuanal gams and losses are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Recogmised Gains and Losses

Pension scheme kabiliies are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method and are discounted to their present value using the
AA corporate bond rate Pension scheme assets are valued at market value at the balance sheet date The pension scheme surplus 1s recognised
i full on the balance sheet

The deferred tax relating to a defined benefit asset s offset against the defined benefit asset and not included with other deferred tax liabilities
Detailed information regarding the surplus and actuanal position of the scheme is given i note 28 to the accounts on pages 40 and 41

The Company also operates a defined contnbution pension scheme The charge to the profit and loss account amounts to the contributions
payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting penod

(1) Financial insirvments

When a financial asset or liability 15 recogmsed mmally it 1s measured at rts fair value plus or minus transaction costs The Company
subsequently categorises financial nstruments as follows

Fixed asset investments consist of loans to Group undertakings, which earn interest based on London Interbank rates and are classified as loans
and receivables They are measured at amortised cost Other financial assets consist of short term bank deposits and debtors and are classified
as loans and receivables They are measured at amortised cost

The Company's financial llabilties consist of {ed rate borrowings in the form of perpetual debentures and an index linked loan These
Instruments are classified as other liabiliies and are measured at amortised cost
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2 Turnover 2012 201
£000 £000
Unmeasured supphes 21,385 21,295
Measured supplies 12,872 12,542
Bulk supply to Southern Water Services 517 561
Chargeable work 1,891 1,117
36,665 35,515

Turnover 1s wholly attnbutable to water supply and related activities in the United Kingdom
3 Net operating expenses 2012 2011
£000 £000
Administrative expenses 10,134 9,980
Other operating income (284) (281)
9,850 9,699

4 Directors and employees

2012 2011
Employment costs £000 £000
Wages and salanes 6,160 6,069
Socral securty costs 495 478
Defined benefit pension costs (note 28) i 2,297 2,345
Defined contnbution pension costs (note 28) 2 -
8,954 8,892
Transferred to capital schemes (446) (481}
Net employment costs charged to the profit and loss account 8,508 8411
2012 201
Average numbers employed during year Number Numnber
Operations 144 144
Administration 79 80
223 224
2012 201
Directors’ remuneralion £000 £000
Total remuneration 515 485
Highest paid Director 137 166

Further details relatng to Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Report on Remuneration on pages 23 and 24 The information set out in that
Report which 1 subject o audit forms part of these financial statements

5 Interest recevable 2012 2011
£000 £000

Loan to Group company 1,298 1,161
Interest on short term deposits 16 12
Repayment interest - 3
Other inkerest recetvable 3 2
1,311 1,178

6 Interest payable and similar charges 2012 2011
£000 £000

£66 5m lpan - Interest 3.215 3,062
- indexation 4,236 3,890

- amortisation of fees i 57

- administratron expenses 24 25

7,532 7,034

Other bank loans and overdraft 104 170
Debenture stocks 10 10
Other interest payable ] 7

7,652 7.221
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7 Profit on ordinary actiities before taxation 2012 2011
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities 1s after charging
Depreciation - Infrastruciure assets 4,955 4747
- non infrastructure assets 3,621 351
Rates 2,285 2,338
Water abstraction charges 1,785 1,953
Audrtors’ remuneration
Audit services - statutory audit 29 K1
Non-audit services - regulatory reporting 12 23
- faxation 6 3
- general advice - 4
Fees in respect of the Brockhampton Pension Scheme
- statutory audit* 2 2
Hire of plant and machinery 9 8
Other operating leases 339 340
* These fees are not paid by Partsmouth Water Limited
8 Taxation 2012 2011
£000 £000
Current tax
Umited Kingdom corporation {ax at 26% (2011 - 28%) 98 334
Adjustment in respect of prior penods (177) (5)
(79) 329
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversat of timing differences 133 486
Decrease in discount 96 28
Effect of change to carporation tax rate (770) (367)
Effect of change to caprtal allowance pool rates 62 -
Difference between pension cost charge and pension cost relief 27 66
Efiect of change to corporaton tax rate on pension asset (729) (362)
(937) {149)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (1,016) 180

The tax charge for the year 1s lower (2011 - ligher) than the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK of 26% {2011 - 28%) The difference 1s

explained as follows

2012 201
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2,650 868
Profit on ordinary activiies multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 - 28%) 689 243
Effect of
Expenses not deductble for tax purposes 17 316
Capital allowances for the perod n excess of depreciation (229) (343)
Revenue fterns charged to capial {7 186
Pension contnbutions unreheved from 2010/11 (90) -
{ifference between pension cost charge and pension cost relief (282) (68)
Adjustments o tax charge in respect of pnor penods {177) )
Current tax charge for year (79) 329
9 Dividends 2012 2019
£000 £000
Equity Ordinary/A’ Ordinary
Intenm paid 1,304 1,037
Final pard 1,192 1,885
2,496 2,922

The Directors are proposing the payment of a final dvidend of £0 848m for the year ended 31 March 2012 This dvidend has not been
accounted for within the current year financial statements, as 1t has yet to be approved
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10 Tangible hixed assels Freehold land,

Vehicles, mohile

buildings Pumping plant & office
& reservoirs Mains plant equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 45,555 124,222 37,210 14,269 221,256
Addiions 589 4,836 1,168 1,534 8,127
Disposals - (279) - (359) (638)
At 31 March 2012 46,144 128,779 38,378 15,444 228,745
Depreciation .
At 1 Apnl 2011 9,192 71,769 14,955 9,257 105,173
Charge for year 449 4,955 1,842 1,330 8,576
Disposals dunng year - (279) - {(318) (597)
At 31 March 2012 9,641 76,445 16,797 10,269 113,152
Net book value ~
At 31 March 2012 36,503 52,334 21,581 5,175 115,593
At31 March 2011 36,363 52,453 22,255 5,012 116,083
Capstal contrtbutions
At 1 Apnl 2011 - 20,207 - - 20,207
Recewved during year - 917 - - 917
At31 March 2012 - 21,124 - - 21,124
Net book value after deducting capital contributions
At 31 March 2012 36,503 31,210 21,581 5175 94,469
At:31 March 2011 36,363 32,246 22,255 5,012 95,876
11 Fixed assel investments Loans to Group
underlakings
£000
At 1 Apnl 2011 and 31 March 2012 59,468
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12 Debtors 2012 201
£000 £000

Trade debtors 2,874 1,878

Amounts owed by Group companies 37 28

Prepayments and accrued income 3,118 2,420

Qther debtors 487 372
6,516 4,698

All of the above amounts fall due within one year

As at 31 March 2012, trade debtors had a carrying valug of £5 352m (2011 - £4 126m) before provision for bad debt Trade debtors in arrears
are provided for in full, but only an element of current debt 15 provided for The amount ¢f the provision was £2 478m as at 31 March 2012
{2011 - £2 248m)

The ageimg of these debtors was as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Up to 12 months 3,146 2,120
Over 12 months 2,206 2,006
5,352 4,126

The debtors provided for are manly in respect of water charges for household customers where expenence In the water industry has shown
pver time that 15 Tkely that there will be difficulties in recovenng the water charges for the penods concerned

Movements on the provision for bad debt are as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2011 2,248 2,188
Prowision for bad debt required in the year 535 519
Debt written off in the year as uncollectable {308) {459)
At 31 March 2012 2,478 2,248

The other classes within debtors do not ¢contain balances that may be wrrecoverable The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reparting date is
the farr value of each class of debtor mentioned above The Company does not hold any collaterai as secunty

13 Current assel investiments
Unlisted mvestments £4,000 (2011 - £4,000)
14 Cash at bank and in hand

0f the total amount shown of £2 563m, £1 655m (2011 - £1 591m) 1s held specifically for the payment of the next hali yearly loan interest
charges

15 Creditors amounts falling due within one year 2012 2011
£000 £000

3% Perpetual debenture stock 60 60
3% Perpetual debenture stock 185 185
4% Perpetual debenture stock 39 39
Bank loan 1,000 4500
Payments received on account 2474 i 2,060
Trade creditors 1,392 1,132
Amounts owed to Group companies 1,555 1,635
Corporation tax - 189
Social secunty and other taxahon 229 21
Other creditors 3,003 1,949
Accruals 557 418
Water rates in advance 5,052 4,865
15,546 17,243

The £1 0m bank loan 1s part of a three year £10m working capital facility, which 1 secured upon the assets of the Company and bears interest
at London Interbank rates
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16 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 2012 201
£000 £000

Due within one to two years

Payments receved on account 548 439

Due withun two to five years

Payments received on account - 548

In hive years or more ) L

Bank loan 89,542 85,306

Less deferred arrangement costs 1,166 1,223
88,376 84,083
88,924 85,070

The thirty year £66 5m index-linked loan was 1ssued on 26 June 2002, 1s repayable on 30 September 2032, and 1s secured upon the assets of
the Company The capital value of the loan 15 adjusted by the change in the Retail Pnices Index from year to year The fees associated with the
loan 1ssue of £1 722m are amortised over the life of the loan The amount owing on the loan 15 stated net of the unamortised i1ssue fees

The loan interest s calculated by adjusting the value of the loan by the Retall Prices Index and then charging interest on this amount at 3 635%
per annum

17 Provisions for hallrhes 2012 2011
£000 £000

Deferred taxation

At 1 Apnl 2011 10,419 10,272

Prowided during the year in profit and loss account {479) 147

At 31 March 2012 9,940 10,419

The total deferred tax balance before the effect of discounting 1s £10 640m (2011 - £11 345m) The amount provided for deferred taxation
represents timing differences caused by the excess of tax allowances over depreciation

2012 2011

£000 £000
Deferred tax excluding that relating to penston asset i
Accelerated capital allowances 9,940 10,419
Pension asset (note 28) 4,891 7,755
Total provision for deferred tax 14,831 18,174
At1 Apnl 2011 18,174 14,073
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account (note 8) {937) {149)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of total recogmised gains and losses (2,408) 4,250
At 31 March 2012 14,831 18,174

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 25% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 was enacted during the penod As a consequence the
deferred tax charge includes a decrease in the deferred tax hability of £0 770m The recent announcement to further reduce the rate to 24% with
effect from 1 Apnl 2012 has not been enacted at the balance sheet date therefore has not been taken into account

In addiion o the reduction in the rates of corporation tax mentoned above, the UK Government has announced s ntention to further reduce the
rate of corporahon tax to 22% by 2014 If this reduction to 22% had been enacted by 31 March 2012 the deferred tax hability would have been
reduced by a further £1 192m to £8 748m

Legislation to reduce the main rate of capital allowances from 20% to 18% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012, together with a reduction in the special/
long Iife pool rate from 10% to 8% was also enacted dunng the penod As a consequence the deferred tax charge includes an increase in the
deferred tax liability of £0 062m

If the tax rate changes had Deen enacted at the balance sheet date the deferred tax hability of £9 940m (see note 17} would have been reduced
by £1 192m to £8 748m and the deferred tax hability relating to the pension asset of £4 891m (see note 28) would have been reduced by

£0 587m to €4 304m The reduction in the deferred tax habilly would have been dealt with in the profit and loss account The reduction m

the deferred tax hiabiity relating to the pension asset would have been dealt with i the statement of total recognised gains and losses The
reductions in deferred tax are expected to be implemented over the penod to 2014 in ine with legislative changes

No provision has been made for deferred tax on gains recogmsed on the sale of properties where potenhally taxable gains have been rolled over
into replacement assets Such tax would become payable only if the property were sold without t being possible to claim rollover relief The total
amount unprovided for 15 £0 619m (2011 - £0 669m) At present it 1s not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the foreseeable future
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18 Financial instruments
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The Financial Review on page 8 provides an explanation of the objectives and policies for holding financial instruments The numencal
thsclasures in this note deal with financial assets and dabeities Short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all disclosures The
fair value of all fnancial instruments 1s not matenally different to the book value

Financial assets

The financial assets of the Company are detalled below The fixed asset mvestment earns interest based on London Interbank rates Cash at
bank and in hand includes a sterling cash deposit of £1 590m, which is placed on the money market at a six monthly rate and 1s held specifically
for the payment of the next half yearly ioan interest charges The remaining cash balances on bank accounts receive interest at commercial

rates

Financial liabilities

The Company has no foreign currency contracts The interest rate profile of its financial iabiities at 31 March 2012 1s detailed below

Sterling 2012 2011
£000 £000
Assets
Fixed asset investment 59,468 59,468
Current asset investrments 4 4
Cash at bank and in hand 2,563 1,746
62,035 61,218
Sterling Fixed Fixed Floating Floating
Rate Rate Rate Rate Total Total
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Liabilities
Bank loans and overdraft 88,376 84,083 1,000 4,500 89,376 88,583
Debenture stock 284 284 - - 284 284
88,660 84,367 1,000 4,500 89,660 88,867
Fixed rate Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average  Average Period Average Penod
Interest Interest for which for which
Rate Rate Rate i1s Fixed Rate 15 Fixed
% % Years Years
2012 201 2012 201
Sterling 36 36 20 21
Interest on the floating rate financial hability 1s based on London !nterbank rates
The matunty profile of the Company's financial liabilities at 31 March 2012 1s detailed below
2012 201
£000 £000
fn one year or less 1,284 4,784
In more than five years 88,376 84,083
89,660 88,867
The Company had undrawn commuited borrowing facilities at 31 March 2012, in respect of which all conditrons precedent had been met, as
follows
2012 20m
£000 £000
Expinng between one and two years 9,000 -
Expinng In more than two years 4,000 9,500

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and labilhes shown above approximate their fair value
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19 Called up share capital 2012 2011
£000 £000

Authonsed

Equity

6,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 10p each 600 600

10,500,000 ‘A Ordnary Shares of 10p each 1,050 1,050
1,650 1,650

Non-equity

3,250,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of £1 each 3,250 3,250
4,900 4,900

Allotted, called up and fully paid

Equity

4,265,177 Ordmary Shares of 10p each 427 427

6,509,162 ‘A’ Grdnary Shares of 10p each 651 651
1,078 1,078

The Ordinary and ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to receive dvidends pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as paid up

on their shares The Ordinary Shares are the only class of share to carry voting nghts

In a distnbution on the winding up of the Company, the Ordinary and ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are entitied to share the balance of any surplus

assets pan passu according to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on their shares

20 Reserves Share Capital Prafit
Premium Redemption and Loss

£000 £000 £000

At1 Apnl 2011 1,539 3,250 654,682
Profit for the financial year - - 3,666
Dwidends - - {2,496)
Actuanal (loss) on pension scheme - - (10,245)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme - - 2,561
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset - - {155)
At 31 March 2012 1,539 3,250 58,013
21 Reconciiation of movements in shareholders’ funds 2012 2011
£000 £000

Profit for the financial year 3,666 688
Dividends {2,496) {(2.922)
1,170 (2.234)

Actuanal (loss)/gain on pension scheme (10,245) 14,904
Movement on deferred tax relating to penston scheme 2,561 (4,024)
Effect of change to corporation tax rate on pension asset (155) {(226)
Net {reduction)/addition to shareholders’ funds (6,669} 8,420
Openming shareholders’ funds 70,549 62,129
Closing shareholders’ funds 63,880 70,549
22 Reconcihiabion of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activiltes 2012 2011
£000 £000

Operating profit 6,514 6,108
Notional pension costs 1,406 1,652
Depreciation charge 8,576 8,258
Loss on disposal of asset 14 -
{Increase)/decrease in stocks (76) 33
{Increase)/decrease in debtors (1,813 238
Increase In creditors 1,097 1,267
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,718 17,556
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23 Reconcihiation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 2012 2011
£000 £000
increase/{decrease) in cash in the year B 152 (260)
Cash outfiow from increase in igud resources 65 75
Cash outflow from decrease in debt 3,500 1,500
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 4,317 i 1,315
Non cash movement {4,293) (3.947)
Movement in net debt in the year . 24 (2,632)
Net debt at 1 April 2011 (87,117) (84,485)
Net debt at 31 March 2012 (87,093) (87,117)

The Company includes as hquid resources term deposits of less than one year and current asset equity investments
24 Analysis of changes in net debt At Cash Non cash At
1 Apnt 2011 Flow Movements 31 March 2012
£000 £000 £000 €000
Cash at bank and in hand 156 752 - 908
Debt falling due within one year (4,784) 3,500 - (1.284)
Debt falling due after one year {84,083) - 4,293) (88,376}
{88.867) 3,500 {4,293) {89,660}
Short term deposits 1,590 65 - 1,655
Current asset equity investments 4 - - 4
1,594 65 - 1,659
{87,117) 4,317 {4.293) {87,093}

The non cash movement relates to the annual indexation of the loan and the amortisation of the 1ssue fees

25 Capital commitments 2012 201
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided In these financial statements 6,489 1,651

The Company has a further commitment under operating leases relating to computer hardware and associated software of £0 339m per annum
(2011 - £0 339m}) which expire as set out below

2012 2011
£000 £000
Within one to two years 339 -
Within two to five years - 334

26 Conhingent habihties

There were no reportable contingent liabilities at 31 March 2012 or at 31 March 2011

27 Ultimate parent undertaking

Portsmouth Water Limited 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Portsmouth Water Holdings Limited and has, therefore, taken advantage of the
exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to provide information on related party transactions with other undertakings within the

Group The ultimate parent undertaking 1s South Downs Capital Limited and 1s the largest and smallest company for which Group accounts are
prepared Copies of these accounts can be obtained on request from the Registered Office
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28 Pensions

Portsmouth Water Limited 1s the pnncipal employer and its parent company, Brockhampton Heldings Limited, 1s the participating employer in the
Brockhampton Pension Scheme This scheme provides defined benefits based pnmanly on pensionable earmings The assets of the scheme are

held in a separate trustee administered fund

The formal actuanal valuatton as at 31 March 2011 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary in accordance with
FRS 17 As required by FRS 17, the value of the defined benefit iabilities has been measured using the projected unit method

The estimated Company contnbutiens expected to be paid to the Scheme for the year commencing 1 Apnl 201215 £1 0m (2011 actual £0 9m)

The key FRS 17 assumptions used for the scheme were as follows

2012 2011 2010

% per annum % per annum % per annum

RPI inflation 34 35 37
CPl inflation 25 28 nfa
Discount rate 46 55 55
Pension increases 25 28 37
Salary growth 565 575 5485

On the basis of the assumpttons used for life expectancy, a male pensioner currentty aged 60 would be expected to live for a further 28 3 years

(2011 - 28 G years) Allowance I1s made for future improvements In Iife expectancy

The fair value of assets in the scheme, a breakdown of the assets into the main assel classes, the present valug of the FRS 17 llabiibes and the

surplus of assets over the FRS 17 habilities (which eguals the gross pension asset) are set out below

2012 2012 2011 201 2010 2010

Expected Fair Expected Farr Expected Fair

Return % Value Return % Value Return % Value

per annum £000 per annum £000 per annum £000

Equities 72 74,294 76 77,654 78 74,538
Bonds 32 44,154 41 40,353 43 37,784
Other 07 5,214 21 2,030 20 1,521
55 123,662 63 120,037 66 113,843

The total expected return on assets 1s derived by taking the weighted average of the long-term expected return on each of the asset classes

2012 2011

£000 £000
Total farr value of scheme assets 123,662 120,037
FRS 17 value of scheme liabilities 104,097 91,313
Gross pension asset 19,565 28,724
Related deferred tax hability 4,891 7,755
Net pension asget 14,674 20,969

Under FRS 17, the scheme 1s represented on the balance sheet at 31 March 2012 as an asset of £19 565m (2011 - £28 724m), which amounts

to £14 674m net of deferred tax (2011 - £20 969m)

The Company paid contributions at a rate of 12 4% of garnings Members pay contnbutions at a rate of 5% of earnings

The Company also operates a defined contnbution pensien scheme The contnbutions payable by the Gompany for the year in respect of the

defined contribution scheme amounted to £2,454 (2011 - £nil)
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The FRS 17 value of scheme habilities moved over the pencd as follows 2012 201

£000 £000
Opening scheme habilibes 91,313 100,268
Employer’s part of current service cost 2,297 2,345
Interest cost i 4,992 5,495
Contributions by scheme participants 96 279
Benefits paid (3,520) (3,351)
Actuanal loss/(gam) 8,919 {13,723)
Closing scheme habiliies 104,097 91,313
The FRS 17 value of scheme assets moved over the penod as follows

2012 201

£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets _ 120,037 113,843
Expected return on assets 7,484 7,392
Contributions by scheme participants i a6 279
Contributions by the Gompany 891 693
Benefits paid _ i {3,520) (3,351)
Actuarial (loss)/gam i (1,326) 1,181
Closing fair value of scheme assets 123,662 120,037
The following amounts have been included within operating profit under FRS 17

2012 201

£000 £000
Current service cost {employer’s part only) i 2,297 2,345
Past service cost - -
Total operating charge 2,297 2,345
The tollowing amounts have been included as other finance mcome under FRS 17

2012 201

£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets } 7.484 7,392
Interest on pension scheme liabilities {4,992) {5,495)
Net return 2,492 1,897
Total return/{expense) recogmsed in the profit and loss account 195 {448)
The following amounts have been recogmised within the statement of total recognised gans and losses (STRGL) under FRS 17

2012 2011

£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets B {1,326) 1,181
Experience gains ansing on scheme habimes 1,783 -
(Loss)/gatn due to changes in assumptions underlying the FRS 17 value of scheme liabilities (10,702) 13,723
Actuanal (loss)/gain recogmsed i the STRGL (10,245) 14,904
The actual return on plan assets was an increase of £6 158m in the year to 31 March 2012 (2011 - increase of £8 573m)
The history of expenence gans and losses Is

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Present value of scheme labilties (£000) (104,097) (91,313 {100,268) (69,808) (77,718)
Total farr value of scheme assets (£000) 123,662 120,037 113,843 86,724 107,696
Gross pension asset (£000) 19,565 28,724 13,575 16,916 29,978
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets (£000) (1,326) 1,181 24,665 (25,132} (5,382)
Percentage of scheme’s assets (1%) 1% 22% {29)% 5%
Expenence gains ansing on scheme’s liabilities (£000) 1,783 - - 4,722 -
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme’s fiabilibes 1% 0% 0% CT% 0%
Total amount recagrised in the STRGL (E000) {10,245) 14,904 (2,636) {13,020) 7,602
Percentage of the FRS 17 value of the scheme’s liabilihes (10%) 16% {3%) {19%) 10%

The cumulative amount of actunal gains and losses recogrised in the STRGL as at 31 March 2012 was a loss of £17 974m (2011 - loss of £7 729m)

The Accounting Standards Board have published guidance refating to best practice far disclosure of pensions information The Gompany have

decided not to follow the guidance at this tme
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Portsmouth Water Limited will be held at the Company's Registered Office, PO Box 8,
West Street, Havant, Hants, at 11 00 am on Monday, the 30th day of July 2012, on the following business

1 To receve and consider the Directors’ Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the Auditors’ Report thereon
2 Toelect Mr N J Sheeran a Director of the Company
3 ToelectMr R C Porteous a Director of the Company

4 To reappoint Saffery Champness as Company Auditors and to authonse the Directors to fix their remuneration

Registered Office

PO Box 8

West Street Havant By order of the Board
Hants POS 1LG C Hardyman ACIS
24 May 2012 Secretary
Notes

1} Debenture holders are reminded that the holding of debenture stock does not entitle them to attend or vote at the meeting

1) Shareholders are reminded that no voting nghts attach to the ‘A Ordinary Shares ‘A’ Ordinary Shareholders are not entitled to attend the
meeting

) A proxy form is enclosed for Shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting

) To be valid proxies must reach the Company’s Registered Office not later than forty-eight hours before the time fied for the meeting
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APPENDIX - KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPi - 1 2012 201
a) Gearing - Debt/RCV £000 £000
(1) Debt
Bank loan {note 16) 89,542 85,306
Bank loan (note 15} 1,000 4,500
Debenture stock (note 15) 284 284
Cash at bank and in hand {2,563) (1,746)
88,263 88,344

For the purposes of this ratio, debt excludes the deferred arrangement costs of £1 166m (note 16) and the current asset investment of £0 004m

(note 13)
(1) Regulatory Capirtat Value (RCV)

Value estabhshed by Otwat in Final Determination in 2009

One of the elements considered by Ofwat in assessing revenues required by the Company is a return on the capital investment in the business
The value of the capital base of each company for the purposes of setuing pnce limits 15 the RCV The RCV 1s widely used by the investment
community as a proxy for the market value of the requlated busingss For Portsmouth Water the RCV 1s a key element of ts bond covenants

2012 2011

£000 £000
Regulatory capital value indexed to 31 March 115,785 115,197
{m) Geanng - Debt/RCV rafio (1)) — (u) 76 2% 76 7%
t) Cash interest cover
This ratio represents the number of times cashilow of the business covers interest payments
{1) Cashflow before interest paid 1s denved from the cashflow statement on page 29 and 1s calculated as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
Operating profit 6,514 6,108
Notional pension costs 1,406 1,652
Depreciation charges 8,576 8,258
Other rtems 14 1,425
Interest received, excluding amounts for inter-company foan 19 17
Taxation, excluding payments for group relef (13) {858)
Caprtal expendrure (6,670) {9,728)
Repayment of loans (3,500) {1,500

6,345 5,374
(1) Interest paid 3,354 3,283
(n} Cash interest cover ratio {1} — (1) 189 164

KP1 - 2 Customer Service Measures

indicators are based on formation supphed to Otwat and confirmed in the Ofwat publication ‘Levels of Service for the Water Industry in

England and Wales Report’

KPI - 3 Water Quahty

This indicator is based on figures reported to the DWI

KPI - 4 Efficiency

The results for this indicator are provided by Ofwat in rts publication ‘Water and Sewerage Unit Costs and Efficiency’

KPl -5 Leakage

This indicator 15 based on figures supplied to Ofwat and confirmed in its report ‘Secunty of Supply, Leakage and the Efficient Use of Water' The

figures for 2011712 have been supphed to Gfwat, but will not be confirmed n the Ofwat document until laterin 2612




